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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Beardstown, Illinois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Beardstown, Illinois,
as of and for the year ended April 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the modified-cash basis of accounting as described in Note A; This includes determining
that the modified-cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial
statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility .

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

modified-cash basis financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
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information of the City of Beardstown, Illinois, as of April 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the modified-

cash basis of accounting as described in Note A.

Other Matters

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note A of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The
financial statements are prepared on the modified-cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting
other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Qur opinion is not
modified with respect to that matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedules of
funding progress on pages 69-71 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide

any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Beardstown, Illinois’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations (DVR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The schedule of tax levies, rates, extensions and collections, the schedule of water and sewer use rates, and
the schedule of insurance policies in force have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any

assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Goverriment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 25, 2017,
on our consideration of the City of Beardstown, Illinois’ internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Beardstown, Illinois® internal

control over financial reporting and compliance,

Beardstown, IIlinois
August 25, 2017
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2017

The City of Beardstown, Illincis (The "City) was incorporated in 1829, under the
provisions of the State of Illinois. The City operates under an Aldermanic form of
govemment and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public
safety (police, fire and ambulance), streets, public improvements, planning and zoning,
and general administrative services. Other services include water and sewer operations.

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1) Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles
and practices of the City are discussed in subsequent sections of this Note. The -
remainder of the Notes is organized to provide explanations, including required
disclosures, of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2016.

Beginning with the fiscal year ending April 30, 2005, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement (GASBS) No. 34 requires the City’s basic financial
statements to be presented on the full accrual basis of accounting and to conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The City’s
reporting entity needs to apply all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements, applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
pronouncements, and applicable Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions, unless
these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The accrual
basis of accounting is the only basis of accounting that conforms with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. Also, the
accrual basis of accounting generally includes the reclassification or elimination of
internal activity (between or within funds).

GASBS No. 34 also requires the City to account for its transactions on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all
liabilities associated with the operations are included on the statements of net position.
Net position (i.e. total assets net total liabilities) is segregated into invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted for debt service; and unrestricted components.

The City has elected not to conform to the requirements of GASBS No. 34. Although the
format of the financial statements still coincides with this pronouncement, the City does
not present its basic financial statements on the full accrual basis of accounting, nor does
the City account for its transactions on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2017

The Governmental and Proprietary funds of the City are maintained on the modified cash
basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Under the modified cash
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when received, not earned; expenditures are
recognized when paid, not incurred. Since the governmental funds financial statements
are presented on a different basis than the governmental activities column of the
government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation is provided. These reconciliations
briefly explain the adjustments necessary to transform the fund financial statements into
governmental activities column of the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting but do not have a
measurement focus and therefore report only assets. Revenues are recorded when
received except that interest income on bonds is accrued. Expenses are recorded when a
liability is paid. Investments are reported at fair value.

2) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a
whole) and fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the
statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the
non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of inter-
fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for

support.

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a functional category or activity are offset by program revenues. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with specific function or activity. Program
revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or activity.

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

The net cost (by function or business-type activity) is normally covered by general
revenue (property taxes, interest income, etc.).

Separate fund based financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
business-type activities. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. The major governmental funds are the general
fund and tax increment financing. The major business-type activities are the City’s
waterworks and sewer system operations. GASBS No. 34 sets the minimum criteria
{(percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures of either fund category for the
governmental funds) for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2017

combined in a column in the fund financial statements. The nonmajor funds are detailed
in the combining section of the statements.

The major governmental funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and always classified
as a major fund. It is used to account for all activities except those legaily or
administratively required to be accounted for in other funds

Major Special Revenue Funds:

Tax Increment Financing Fund

The Tax Increment Financing Fund accounts for the receipts and disbursements
of the City’s three Tax Increment Financing District. The Districts main source
of revenue is based upon the increase in the equalized assessed valuation of

real estate located within the boundaries of each District. Expenditures from this
fund are used to improve public properties and private property to induce
economic activity. |

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity
and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal
period. The focus of the fund financial statements is on the major individual funds of the
governmental and business-type categories. Each presentation provides valuable
information that can be analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the

information.
3. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The funds of the City, including all fund types and component units are maintained on a
basis of cash receipts and cash disbursements. The accompanying financial statements
have been prepared on the cash basis of accounting. Governmental generally accepted
accounting principles require that all funds except enterprise funds be accounted for
under the modified accrual basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue should be
recorded when it is both measurable and available to finance current expenditures of the
funds. Expenditures should be recorded at the time in which they are incurred. The City
has not accounted for infrastructure assets for governmental activities and does not
include these in the financial statements. The City does not include debt and other long-
term liabilities incurred by governmental activities in the financial statements.
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2017 '

The enterprise funds should be reported under the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized when incurred. The statements do not purport to present financial position
and results of operations in accordance with governmental generally accepted accounting
principles. However, the fixed assets of the waterworks and sewerage systems have been
capitalized and depreciation of fixed assets used in water and sewer operations has been
included in the financial statements. Long term bonded indebtedness is included in the
financial statements of the waterworks and sewerage system funds.

The pension trust funds are reported on a modified cash basis. Investments are reported
at fair market value and interest is accrued on all bonds. Expenses are recorded when
paid, not when the liability is incurred. The City has opted to report both pension trust
funds separately with a total column, rather than combining the pension trust funds into
one single column as required by standards.

4. The Reporting Entity

The City, for financial reporting purposes, includes all funds and account groups relevant
to the operation of the City. The financial statements presented herein do not include
agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws or separate and distinct

units of government apart from the City.

The financial statements of the City include those of separately administered
organizations that are controlled by or dependent on the City. Control or dependence is
determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, fund and appointment of the
respective governing board. All funds of the City and component units share the same

fiscal year ending of April 30.

Based on the foregoing criteria, the financial statements of the following organizations
are discretely presented in the accompanying financial statements:

Beardstown Public Library - The City Council appoints the Library Board, approves the
budget and levies taxes. The financial statements of the Beardstown Public Library are

included in the supplemental information section of this report.

Beardstown Museum, Inc. is a non-for-profit corporation organized to promote and
operate the museum and Lincoln Courtroom located at 101 West Third Street in
Beardstown. The Board of Directors are appointed by and the budget is approved by the
City Council. The entity’s financial statements are included in the supplemental
information section of this report.
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each of
which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are
accounted for by providing cash receipts and cash disbursements journals. This
information is analyzed and organized to provide a set of self-balancing accounts which
are comprised of each fund's assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or
expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and for individual funds
based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in these financial statements, into
four generic fund types and three broad fund categories as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than special assessments, expendable trust, or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Business-Type Funds

Business-type funds are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing
body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or services to
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. The

City reports two business-type funds:

a) The Waterworks fund accounts which accounts for the operation of the city-
owned waterworks treatment plant and distribution system.

b) The Sewerage fund accounts which account for the operation of the city-
owned sewer system. The City does not operating the wastewater treatment

plant.
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Trust Funds

Fiduciary fund types are used to account for assets held by a governmental unit in a
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental

units and/or other funds. The following are the City’s fiduciary fund types:

a) The Police Pension Fund accounts for the assets of the Police Pension,
accounting for and managing the assets necessary to provide pension and
disability benefits to the City’s police officers as prescribed by Illinois
statutes.

b) The Firefighters’ Pension Fund accounts for the assets of the Firefighter’s
Pension, accounting for and managing the assets necessary to provide pension
and disability benefits to the City’s firefighters’ as prescribed by Ilinois

statutes.

4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LONG TERM LIABILITIES

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to property, plant, and equipment and
long-term liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. All
governmental fund types are accounted for on a spending "financial flow" measurement
focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included
on their balance sheets, Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a
measure of "available spendable resources". Governmental fund operating statements
present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and
other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a
summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period.

It is the City's policy to expense the purchase of property, plant and equipment by all
governmental type funds. Therefore, a general fixed assets account group is not
maintained as required by governmental generally accepted accounting principles.

The City does not record mortgages or capital lease liabilities incurred for the purchase of
property, plant, and equipment by all governmental type funds. Payments by
governmental fund types on mortgages and capital leases are expensed when paid.

The City has adopted the accounting policy of not capitalizing "infrastructure" general
fixed assets (road, curbs and gutter, streets and sidewalks, and similar assets that are
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immovable in nature and of value only to the City).

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance"
measurement focus. This means that all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Their
reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained

earnings components.

Expenditures for water and sewer system improvements have been capitalized and
includes the cost of improvements made since 1966. Additionally, interest expense
incurred during the construction period are capitalized. Expenditures for water and sewer
system improvements are included in the enterprise balance sheet. Water and sewer
system improvements are depreciated on the straight line basis over an estimated useful
life of 40 to 50 years. Depreciation begins the first day of the fiscal year after the
improvements are completed. There was no interest capitalization during the fiscal year.
Total interest paid and expensed during the year by the Waterworks System was $8,175
and $19,231 was paid by the Sewerage System. The City does not budget for
depreciation expense for enterprise funds. This should be taken into account when
analyzing management’s' ability to accurately budget expenditures and operate within

that budget.

5. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Accrued compensated absences have not been included in the financial statements. The
effects of this omission cannot be reasonably estimated.

6. ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Governmental accounting standards require that the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, report long-term
debt and other long-term obligations as liabilities in the applicable business-type
activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. The City does not report long-
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term debt and other long-term obligations of governmental fund types in the government-
wide or fund financial statements. The City does report long-term debt in the statements
of the proprietary waterworks and sewerage system funds. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

8. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES
Government-wide and Proprietary Siatements
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

1. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, leases or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those

assets.
2. Restricted Net Position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the

use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions

or enabling legislation.

3. Untrestricted Net Position — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

The following restrictions on net position are reported on the Government-wide and
Proprietary statements:
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APRIL 30, 2017
Governmental  Business-Type
Net Position Restrictions: Activities Activities
Fines received for use in cannabis and controlied substance law
enforcement $ 5075 % -
Fines received for use i alcohol related crimes 3,342 -
Fines received for new police vehicles 6,543 -
Bilked to Citizens for Garbage Disposal Services 32,126 -
Ambulance Services 159,303 -
Hotel Tax for Toursm Promotion 19,009 -
Cemetery Operation, Maintenance, and Land Acquisition 305,589 -
Care of Police Canine 6,510 -
Beautification of City Areas 11,725 -
Grant Funds -
Christmas Baskets for Citizens in Need 2,211
Motor Fuel Tax 241,079
Grant finds for Revolving Loans - 442,262
Tax Increment Financing Projects 212,174 -
Property Tax Levy for: -
Municipal Band - -
Civil Defense ' - -
Workmens Compensation Insurance 35,753 -
IMRF Pension: Conirbution 39,034 -
Social Security and Medicare Tax 28,245 .
Water System Operation, Debt Service and Improvements - 6,584,931
Sewerage System Operation, Debt Service and Improvements - 3,755,866
Total Restrictions of Net Position $§ 1,549,980 $ 10,340,797
Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Governmental fund balances are
classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned.
Nonspendable fund balance cannot be spent because of its form. Restricted fund balance
has limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, or contributors or by enabling legislation
or constitutional provisions. Committed fund balance is a limitation imposed by the City
Council through approval of resclutions. Assigned fund balances is a limitation imposed
by a designee of the City Council. Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund is the
net resources in excess of what can be properly classified in one of the above four

categories.

Proprietary fund net position are classified the same as in the government-wide
statements.
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When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
(committed, assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available, it is the policy of the City to
generally consider restricted amounts to have been reduced first. When an expenditure is
incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used, it is the policy of the City that-committed amount would be
reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts. In both
instances, when a proposed expenditure is made with specific balances identified as the
source of the funding, that specific fund balance will be used.

Restrictions of Fund Balances
Special Reverue
Fund Balance Clasgifications Capital Projects Furds Assigned Nonspendable Totak

Fines received for use in cannabis and condrolled substance law
enforcemert $ 3 5075 § - 3 5,075
Fines received for use in akcohol related crimes 3,342 - 3,342
Fines received for new police vehickes 6,543 6,543
Billed io citizens for garbage disposal Services - 32,126 32,126
Ambulance services - 159,303 159,303
Hotel tax for tourism promotion 19,009 19,009
Cermetery operation, maintenance, and land acquisition 305,589 305,589
Care of police canine - . 6,510 6,510
Beautification of city - 11,725 11,725
Clistrras baskets for citizens in need - 2211 2211
Motor Fuel Tax 241,079 241,079
Revolving loars in repayment 393,859 393,859
Grart finds available for revolving loans 48,403 - 48 403
Tax Increment Financing projects 212,174 212,174
Property Tax Levy for:

Workmens Compensation Insurance 35,753 35,753

IMRF Pension Contribution 39,034 39.034

Social Security and Medicare Tax - 28,245 28,245
‘Water System operation, debt service and improvements 6,584,930 6,584,930
Sewerage Systern operation, debt service and improvements 3,755,866 3,755,866

Total Restrictions of Net Position § 10,581,875 § 703,167 § 211875 § 393,859 §11,8%0,776

9. OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES ~ PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the proprietary funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses
include the cost of operations and maintenance, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues

and expenses
10. RESTRICTED ASSETS - Proprietary Fund Types

Restricted assets include cash and certificates of deposit of special purpose tax levies that
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are legally restricted as to their use, donor imposed restrictions, grant awards, and debt
issuance requirements. In all instances where an expenditure is incurred, when both
restricted and nonrestricted resources are available, the restricted resources are used first.

Proprietary Fund Types:
Waterworks:
Series 2016 A Bond and Interest 45,135
IEPA Loan 17-2563 Bond & Interest 224,193
IEPA Loan 17-2562 Bond & Interest 96,570

Series 2004 Bond Reserve 171,591
Series 2004 Replacement & 34,491
Extension
Total Waterworks: $571,980
Sewerage System
DCEO Grand #13-303014 22,161
Series 2016 B Bond & Interest 108,925
Jr Lien Bond Reserve 88,306
Jr Lien Bond Depreciation 47,725
Total Sewerage System 267.116
Total Proprietary Fund Types $ 839,096

NOTE B. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund receivables and payables may exist at the end of the fiscal year. These are
recorded in the appropriate fund statement of assets, liabilities, and fund balance arising
from cash transactions. Interfund transfers are periodically made to eliminate the
interfund receivable and payable. There were no interfund balances at the end of the

year.

NOTE C. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash equivalents for statement of cash flow purposes include only cash held in a

checking account. Investments in Certificates of Deposit are not considered cash
equivalents due to maturity dates in excess of ninety days.
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NOTE D. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds, except the DCEO
Grant #13-303014, and the Revolving Loan Fund. Each fund type's portion of this pool
is displayed on the combined balance sheet as cash, restricted cash or fund overdraft.

The Statutes authorize the City to invest in certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements,
passbooks and other available bank investments provided that approved securities are
pledged to secure those funds on deposit in an amount equal to the amount of those
funds. In addition the City can invest in direct debt securities of the United States unless

such an investment is expressly prohibited by law,

Investments made or redeemed in governmental and proprietary funds during the year
consisted solely of certificates of deposit and NOW accounts held with local financial
institutions. Investments held in the governmental and proprietary funds consist of
certificates of deposit. These are carried at cost which includes any interest income

reinvested.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s
deposits may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in
the possession of an outside party. Deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for accounts bearing interest at a rate

greater than 0.5%.

At April 30, 2017 the carrying amount of the City's deposits (checking and certificates of
deposit) was $3,987,725 and the bank balance was $4,131,547. $463,717 of the bank
balance was covered by federal depository insurance. The remaining balance of
$3,667,830 is covered by a $4,000,000 irrevocable letter of credit issued by the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Chicago securing deposits at West Central Bank. This irrevocable
letter of credit is dated March 4, 2016 and expires September 6, 2016.

The City's deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by
the City at year end. Category 1 includes deposits that are insured or registered or for
which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered deposits for which the securities are held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes
uninsured and uncollateralized deposit.

Bank
Carrying Book
Value Value

Page ~ 33



CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APRIL 30, 2017
Category 1 $4,131,547 $3,643,915
Category 2 $0 $0
Category 3 $0 $0
Fiduciary Funds:

Authorized investments: The Police and Firefighters’ Pension Funds may invest in
any type of "investment instrument” permitted by Illinois law as described in Chapter
40 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, 40 ILCS 5/1-113.1 through 113.4a. Permitted
"investment instruments" include, but are not limited to:

1. Interest bearing direct obligations of the United States of America.

2. Interest bearing obligations to the extent that they are fully guaranteed or insured
as to payment of principal and interest by the United States of America.

3. Interest bearing bonds, notes, debentures, or other similar obligations of agencies
of the United States of America. For the purposes of this Section, “agencies of the
United States of America” includes: (i) the Federal National Mortgage
Association and the Student Loan Marketing Association; (ii) federal land banks,
federal intermediate credit banks, federal farm credit banks, and any other entity
authorized to issue direct debt obligations of the United States of America under
the Farm Credit Act of 1971 or amendments to that Act; (iii) federal home loan
banks and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; and (iv) any agency
created by Act of Congress that is authorized to issue direct debt obligations of

the United States of America.

4. Interest bearing savings accounts or certificates of deposit, issued by federally
chartered banks or savings and loan associations, to the extent that the deposits
are insured by agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government.

5. Interest bearing savings accounts or certificates of deposit, issued by State of
Illinois chartered banks or savings and loan associations, to the extent that the
deposits are insured by agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government.

6. Investments in credit unions, to the extent that the investments are insured by
agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government.

7. Interest bearing bonds of the State of Illinois.
8. Pooled interest bearing accounts managed by the Illinois Public Treasurer's

Investment Pool in accordance with the Deposit of State Moneys Act, interest
bearing funds or pooled accounts of the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Funds,
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and interest bearing funds or pooled accounts managed, operated, and
administered by banks, subsidiaries of banks, or subsidiaries of bank holding
companies in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.

Interest bearing bonds or tax anticipation warrants of any county, township, or
municipal corporation of the State of Illinois.

Direct obligations of the State of Israel, subject to the conditions and limitations
of item (5.1) of Section 1-113.

Money market mutual funds managed by investment companies that are
registered under the federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and the Illinois
Securities Law of 1953 and are diversified, open-ended management investment
companies; provided that the portfolio of the money market mutual fund is limited

to the following:

(i) Bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills, or other securities that
are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America as to

principal and interest;

(if) Bonds, notes, debentures, or other similar obligations of the United States of
America or its agencies; and

(iii) Short term obligations of corporations organized in the United States with
assets exceeding $400,000,000, provided that {A) the obligations mature no later
than 180 days from the date of purchase, (B) at the time of purchase, the
obligations are rated by at least 2 standard national rating services at one of their 3
highest classifications, and (C) the obligations held by the mutual fund do not
exceed 10% of the corporation's outstanding obligations.

General accounts of life insurance companies authorized to transact business in
Illinois.

Any combination of the following, not to exceed 10% of the pension fund's net
assets:

(i) Separate accounts that are managed by life insurance companies authorized to
transact business in Illinois and are comprised of diversified portfolios consisting
of common or preferred stocks, bonds, or money market instruments;

(ii) Separate accounts that are managed by insurance companies authorized to

transact business in Illinois, and are comprised of real estate or loans upon real
estate secured by first or second mortgages; and
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(iii) Mutual funds that meet the following requirements:

(A) The mutual fund is managed by an investment company as defined and
registered under the federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and registered
under the Illinois Securities Law of 1953;

(B) The mutual fund has been in operation for at least 5 years;
(C) The mutual fund has total net assets of $250 million or more; and

(D) The mutual fund is comprised of diversified portfolios of common or-
preferred stocks, bonds, or money market instruments.

14. Corporate bonds managed through an investment advisor must meet all of the
following requirements:

(i) The bonds must be rated as investment grade by one of the 2 largest rating
services at the time of purchase.

(ii) If subsequently downgraded below investment grade, the bonds must be
liquidated from the portfolio within S0 days after being downgraded by the

manager.

Deposits:

Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the
risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Firefighters and Police Pension Fund’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Firefighters and Police Pension Fund’s
investment policy does not require pledging of collateral for all bank balances in excess
of federal depository insurance, such flow-through FDIC insurance is available for the
Firefighters and Police Pension Fund’s deposits with financial institutions.

Investments: -

Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for investment is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty to the investment, the Firefighters’ and Police Pension
Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an
outside party. The Firefighters’ and Police Pension Fund’s investment policy does not
specifically address custodial credit risk, except for the Firefighters’ and Police Pension
Fund’s compliance with state statutes.

Interest rate risk: The risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of the investment. The Board of Trustees of the Beardstown Police and
Firefighters’ Funds recognize their ultimate responsibility for the value preservation and

Page-—36



CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2017

growth of the Fund’s assets in its investment policies. The policies will minimize the risk
that the market value of the securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in general
interest rates by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for benefit payments, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the
open market prior to maturity. The policies do not limit the maximum length of

investments.

At April 30, 2017, the fiduciary funds investment balances were as follows:

MATURITY
Less than 1 More than
Investment Type FMV year 1-5 Years 6-10 Years 10 Years
Firefighters' Pension:
U S Agency Obligations $ 74791 $ 31,928 $§ 42,863 $ - 8 -
U S Government Obligations 367,925 - 278,800 89,125 -
Corporate Bonds ' 226,063 40,475 15,261 10,327 -
Police Pension:
U S Agency Obligations 130,575 49,888 80,687 -
U S Govemment Obligations 573.457 - 469,469 103,988
Corporate Bonds 366,781 60,443 249,636 56,702
Subject to Interest Rate Risk 1,739,592 $ 182,734 $ 1,136716 $ 260,142 § -
Firefighters' Pension:
Money Market Mutual Funds 47210
Mutual Funds 113,015
Police Pension:
Money Market Mutual Funds 59,549
Mutual Funds 199,338

Total Investments $ 2,158,704

Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk an issuer of an investment will not fulfill ifs
obligation to the holder of the investment. This measured by the assigned rating by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Police and Firefighters’ Pension
Plans investment policy does not specifically address credit risk for investments, except
for corporate bonds and compliance with Illinois statutes. Corporate bonds must be rated
as investment grade by one of the two largest rating agencies at the time of purchase.
Subsequently, if a domestic corporate bond security is downgraded below investment
grade by one of the two largest rating agencies, the security must be liquidated from the

portfolio within 90 days of the downgrade.
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At April 30, 2017, the fiduciary funds investment balances were rated as follows:

Standard and Poor's Moody's

Investment Type FMV AAA AA A BBB  Not Rated
Firefighters' Pension:
U S Agency Obligations 3 74791 $ - % 7479 % - % - 8 -
T 8§ Government Obligations 367,925 367,925 - - - -
Corporate Bonds 226,063 - 32,659 178,230 15,174 -
Money Market Mutual Funds 47210 - 47,210
Police Pension:
U S Agency Obligations 130,575 - 130,575 - - -
U S Government Obligations 573,457 573,457 - - - -
Corporate Bonds : 366,781 - 102,682 233,751 30,348 -
Money Market Mutual Funds 59,549 - - - - 59,549

Total Investments _$ .1,846,351 $ 941,382 § 340,707 § 411,981 § 45522 $ 106,759

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Police and Firefighters’ Pension Fund bonds and
equity investments are held in custodial accounts managed by Morgan Stanley. The
investment policy of the Police and Firefighters’ Pension Funds allows an allocation of
ten percent in equity-type investments and 85 to 89% in fixed-income type investments
and 1 to 5% in cash. Individual holdings must meet certain criteria outlined in the
investment policies, and no individual holding may comprise more than 5 percent of
equity holdings in total.

There were no investments (other than U. S. government and agencies’ securities) in any
one organization that represented 5 percent or more of net assets available for benefits in
the Police Pension Fund or the Firefighters’ Pension Fund.

NOTE E. PROPERTY TAX

Property Taxes attach as an enforceable lien as of January 1. Taxes were assessed on
January 1, 2016 and are due and payable on or before July 1, 2016 and September 1,
2016. The County of Cass bills and collects the tax and remits the correct amount to the
City. Property tax revenues are recognized when received. Distributions are received
each month from July through December. The property tax levy ordinance for 2015
collected in 2016 was adopted by the City Council on December 8, 2015. The property
tax revenues reported in these statements were levied in 2015 and collected in 2016.

NOTE F. TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS - OVERVIEW

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "memorandum only" to indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate analysis. Data in these columns do not present
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financial position, or results of operations in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

NOTE G. PROPRIETARY FUND CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of enterprise revenue bonds transactions of the City for the
year ended April 30, 2017:

Payable at Payabl at

Bond Issue 4/30/2016 Issued Retired 4/3072017
Waterworks, Series 2007A $ 25,000 § - 3 (25,000) § -
Sewerage, Series 2007B - 60,000 . (60,000) -
IEPA 172562 1,346,153 - (96,154) 1,249,999
IEPA 172563 3,350,162 - (223344) 3,126,818
Sewerage, Series 2016B 335,000 < © {5,000) 330,000
Waterworks, Ser 2016A 825,000 - (10,000) 815,000
Totals "$ 5941315 § - $  (419498) § 5,521,817

The Proprietary Fund Long-Term Debt outstanding at the end of the year consists of:
1. $825,000 General Obligation Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B, Sewerage System
Alternative Revenue Source, due in annual installments, interest payable
semiannually at rates ranging from 2.00% to 2.70%.

2. $500,000 General Obligation Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A, Waterworks System
Alternative Revenue Source, due in annual installments, interest payable
semiannually at rates ranging from 2.00% to 2.70%.

3. $1,875,000 loan #172562 from IEPA for waterworks system improvements, 0%
interest, 39 semiannual installments of $48,077 beginning February 2011.

4, $4,313,577 loan #172563 from Illinois Environmental Protection Agency for
waterworks system improvements, 0% interest, principal payable in 40
semiannual installments of $97,794 beginning July, 2011.

NOTE H. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

A. REGULAR EMPLOYEES

Plan Description. The City’s defined benefit pension plan for Regular employees
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provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits.
to plan members and beneficiaries. The employer plan is affiliated with the Ilinois
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit
provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly
of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be

obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the City’s Regular plan members are required to
contribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to
contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the
retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer annual required contribution
rate for calendar year 2016 was 11.01 percent. The employer also contributes for
disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are
pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by
the IMRF Board of Trustees, while supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost. For calendar year ending December 31, 2016, the required
contribution for the calendar year 2016 was $119,942.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Regular Plan

Fiscal Percentage

Year Annual Pension of APC Net pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/16 $119,942 100% $0
12/31/15 - 111,018 100% $0
12/31/14 $120,891 100% $0

The required contribution for 2016 was determined as part of the December 31, 2014,
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions at December 31, 2014, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return (net
of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00%
a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from
0.4% to 10% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and
(d) post retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the City’s
Regular plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor
between the actuarial and market value of assets. The City’s Regular plan’s unfunded
actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2014 is being amortized as a level percentage
of projected payroll on an open 27 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2016, the most recent
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actuarial valuation date, the Regular plan was 84.57 percent funded. -The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $3,586,252 and the actuarial vaiue of assets was
$3,032,999, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $553,253.
The covered payroll for calendar 2016 (annual payroll of active employees covered by
the plan) was $1,089,391 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 51

percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for

benefits,
B. SHERIFF’S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL

Plan Description. The City’s defined benefit pension plan for Sheriff’s Law
Enforcement Personnel employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post
retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City’s
plan is affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-
employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by
the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That

report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the City’s Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personne! plan
members are required to contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The
statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member
contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer
contribution rate for calendar year 2016 was 13.85 percent. The employer also
contributes for disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits,
all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death
benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while supplemental retirement benefits

rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost. For calendar year ending December 31, 2016, the required
contribution for calendar year 2016 was $4,069.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel Plan

Fiscal Percentage

Year Annual Pension of APC Net pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/16 $4,069 100% $0
12/31/15 $3,713 100% $0
12/31/14 0 100% $0
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The required contribution for 2016 was determined as part of the December 31, 2014,
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions at December 31, 2014, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return (net
of administrative and direct investment expenses), {b) projected salary increases of 3.50%
a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from
0.4% to 10% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and
{d) post retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the City’s
Sheriff’'s Law Enforcement Personnel plan’s assets was determined using techniques that
spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-
year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The
City’s Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability at
December 31, 2014 is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an

open 27 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2016, the most recent
actuarial valuation date, the Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel plan was 0.00 percent
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $0 and the actuarial value of
assets was -$56,598, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$56,598. The covered payroll for calendar year 2010 (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $0 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 0

percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for

benefits.

POLICE PENSION

Plan Description. The City’s defined benefit pension plan for Police Law Enforcement
‘Personnel employees provides retirement and disability benefits post retirement
increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plan is a self-
managed plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by
the General Assembly of the State of Illinois.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the City’s Police Law Enforcement Personnel plan
members are required to contribute 9.91 percent of the annual covered salary. The statute
requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member
contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer
contribution rate for the twelve months ending April 30, 2017 was 49.01% of covered

payroll.
Annual Pension Cost. For fiscal year ending April 30, 2017, the required contribution for
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the year was $117,367.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Police Pension

Fiscal Percentage

Year Annual Pension of APC Net pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
04/30/17 117,367 100% $0
04/30/16 108,173 100% $0
04/30/15 162,530 100% $0

The required contribution for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2017 was determined as
part of the May 1, 2016 actuarial valuation using methods required under Section 3-125
of the Illinois Pension Code. The funding method is Projected Unit credit. The
amortization method is Normal cost, plus an additional amount (determined as a level
percentage of payroll) to bring the plan’s funded ratio to 90% by the end of fiscal year
2040. The asset valuation method requires that investment gains and losses are
recognized over a 5-year period. The actual assumptions at May 1, 2016 include: (a)
Interest rate, 5.0% (b) Interest rate, prior fiscal year 5.0%, (c) Healthy mortality rates
based upon RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality, with Blue Collar Adjustment (d)
Disability mortality rates based upon RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality, (e)
Decrements other than mortality based upon experience tables, (f) Rate of service-related
deaths 5%, (g) Rate of service-related disabilities 70%, (h) Salary increases based upon
service-related table with rates grading from 11% to 4% at 30 years of service, (i) 4.50%
payroll growth, (j) 1.25% Tier 2 cost-of-living adjustment, (k) Marital assumptions
assume that 80% of the members are married; male spouses are assumed to be 3 years
older than female spouses.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of May 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the Police plan was 50.00% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for
benefits was $3,094,973 and the actuarial value of assets was $1,544,924, resulting in an
underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $1,550,049. The covered payroll for
the year was $239,047 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 648.43%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is Increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for

benefits.

FIREFIGHTERS PENSION
Plan Description. The City’s defined benefit pension plan for the City’s Firefighters’

Personnel employees provides retirement and disability benefits post retirement
increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plan is a self-
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managed plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by
the General Assembly of the State of Illinois.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the City’s Firefighters’ Personnel plan members are
required to contribute 9.455 percent of the annual covered salary. The statute requires
employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to -
finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer contribution rate
for the twelve months ending April 30, 2017 was 55.74% of covered payroll. The
employer contribution rate includes the amount necessary to provide for the employer
normal cost of annual payroll of active participants, the amount necessary amortize the
unfunded accrued liability over 24 years, and interest to the end of the fiscal year.

Annual Pension Cost. For fiscal year ending April 30, 2017, the required contribution for
the year was $77,284.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Firefighters’ Pension

Fiscal Percentage

Year Annual Pension of APC Net pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
04/30/17 77,284 100% $0
04/30/16 88,389 100% $0
04/30/15 84,770 100% $0

The required contribution for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2017 was determined as
part of the May 1, 2016 actuarial valnation using methods required by Section 4-118 of
the Illinois Pension Code.. The funding method is Projected Unit credit. The.
amortization method is Normal Cost, plus an additional amount (determined as a Ievel
percentage of payroll) to bring the plan’s funded ratio to 90% by the end of fiscal year
2040. The asset valuation method requires that investment gains and losses are
recognized over a 5-year period. The actual assumptions at May 1, 2016 include: (a)
Interest rate, 5.0% (b) Interest rate, prior fiscal year 5.0%, (c) Healthy mortality rates
based upon RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality, with Blue Collar Adjustment (d)
Disability mortality rates based upon RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality, (€)
Decrements other than mortality based upon experience tables, (f) Rate of service-related
deaths 5%, (g) Rate of service-related disabilities 90%, (h) Salary

increases based upon service-related table with rates grading from 12% to 4% at 30 years
of service, (i) 4.50% payroll growth, (j) 1.25% Tier 2 cost-of-living adjustment, (k)
Marital assumptions assume that 80% of the members are married; male spouses are
assumed to be 3 years older than female spouses.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of May 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the Firefighters’ plan was 58.23% funded. The actuarial accrued liability
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for benefits was $1,773,877 and the actuarial value of assets was $1,032,976, resulting in
an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $740,901. The covered payroll for
the year was $138,646 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 534.38%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued Hability for

benefits.

NOTE I. REVOLVING LOAN FUND

The City, in cooperation with the Illinois Department of Community Affairs has
established a Revolving Loan Fund. The funds are to be used for loans to small business
to expand and improve operations and increase employment in the Beardstown area.

A $30,000 loan was made to Stanley Stern on January 5, 1996. The proceeds were used
to construct a 4,000 square foot building to house a PACT/Head Start program. Tri-
County Community Development Corporation and the First State Bank of Beardstown
also provided $205,400 in loans for this project. This loan bears interest at 3% and is
payable in 96 monthly installments of $167 with a $20,247 balloon payment due on
November 20, 2003. This loan was refinanced in November 2003 for 80 monthly
payments of $284, at 3.0% interest. This is secured by a third mortgage on the property.
The balance outstanding as of April 30, 2017 was $4,308. This loan is in default,

Loan to Dustin Looker and Lori Schroll, d/b/a Looker’s Sports Bar. The loan of $15,000
bears interest at 3.0% and is payable in 120 monthly installments of $145. $4,046 is due

as of April 30, 2017. This loan is in default.

$150,000 loan to Canter Family Dental, PC on August 23, 2012 for the renovation of a
dental ¢linic. This loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 3% and is payable in 120 monthly
installments of $1,449. $89,332 is due as of April 30, 2017.

$21,300 to 88 Bar & Grill LLC for renovation of a tavern. This loan bears interest at a
fixed rate of 3% and is payable in 120 monthly installments of $206. The balance due as

of April 30,2017 is $15,398.

$30,000 to Michelle Quiqley and Teri Palmer for business acquisition. This loan bears
interest at a fixed rate of 3% and is payable in 120 monthly installments of $290. The

balance due as of April 30, 2017 is $26,277.

$50,000 to Nicholas Soer, d/b/a 3G Soer Hardware for business acquisition. This loan
bears interest at a fixed rate of 3% and is payable in 120 monthly installments of $206.
The balance due as of April 30, 2017 is $43,122.
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$70,000 to Nancy Cowen, Joseph McClenning, and Brandee McClenning for renovations
and startup costs of Rivertown Wine and Coffee, LLC. This loan bears interest at a fixed
rate of 3% and is payable in 120 monthly installments of $677. The balance due as of

April 30, 2017 is $61,376.

$150,000 loan to Falcon Protein Products, Inc. on December 9, 2016 for the construction
of a protein processing plant. This loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 3% and is payable
in 120 monthly installments of $1,536 beginning July 1, 2017. $15,000 is due as of April

30,2017.

NOTE J. PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION

The budgetary data included in these financial statements was summarized from the
budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2017 to establish the budgeted
expenses. The budget is prepared based upon the expected cash receipts and cash
receipts and cash disbursements to be made. The budget was approved by the City
Council on July 5, 2016. There were no amendments to the budget during the fiscal year.

NOTE K. SINKING FUND REQUIREMENTS

The following funds are required under the terms of each bond ordinance:

1) General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Waterworks System Alternate
Revenue Source) Series 2015A

Operation and Maintenance: There shall be deposited and credited to the Operation and
Maintenance Account an amount sufficient, when added to the amount then on deposit in
such Account, to establish a balance equal to an amount not less than the amount
necessary to pay Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the then current month,

Bond and Interest Account: There shall be deposited and credited to the Bond and
Interest Account and held, in cash and investments, a fractional amount (not less than
1/6) of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date on all
Outstanding Bonds and also a fractional amount (not less than 1/12) of the principal
becoming due (or subject to mandatory redemption) on the next succeeding principal
maturity date of all of the Qutstanding Bonds until there shall have been accumulated and
held in cash and investments in such Bond and Interest Account on or before the month
preceding such maturity date of interest or principal, or both, an amount sufficient to pay

such principal or interest, or both.
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In computing the fractional amount to be set aside each month in such Bond and Interest
Account, the fraction shall be so computed that a sufficient amount will be set aside in
such Account and will be available for the prompt payment of such principal of and
interest on all Qutstanding Bonds and shall be not less than one-sixth (1/6) of the interest
becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date and not less than one-twelfth
(1/12) of the principal becoming due (or subject to mandatory redemption) on the next
succeeding principal payment date on all Outstanding Bonds until there is sufficient
money in such Account to pay such principal or interest, or both.

Credits into such Bond and Interest Account may be suspended in any Fiscal Year at such
time as there shall be a sufficient sum held in cash and investments in such Bond and
Interest Account to meet principal and interest requirements in such Bond and Interest
Account for the balance of such Fiscal Year, but such credits shall again be resumed at
the beginning of the next Fiscal year. All moneys in such Bond and Interest Account
shall be used only for the purpose of paying interest and principal and applicable
premium on Qutstanding Bonds. At the time of the delivery of any of the Bonds, such
amount, if any, determined necessary by the Corporate Authorities to be deposited into
such Bond and Interest Account from the proceeds of the Bonds.

Sinking Fund Account

Money in the Waterworks Fund shall at the same time the required payments are made to
the Bond and Interest Account be allocated to the special and separate account to pay
sinking fund installments, if any, with respect to any bonds subject to mandatory
redemption, known as the “Sinking Fund Account”. The City shall maintain a separate
sub-account n the Sinking Fund Account for each particular group of any bonds which
mature on a single future date and for which sinking fund installments are required to be
paid in order to redeem such Bonds. The minimum amounts to be credited to each such
subaccount on or before the first day of each month shall be (1) if such sub-account
requires the payment of semi-annual installments in order to redeem such Bonds, 1/6 of
the amount payable on the next succeeding installment payment date; and (2) if such sub-
account requires the payment of annual installments in order to redeem such Bonds, 1/12
of the amount payable on the next succeeding installment payment date. Moneys
allocated to the Sinking Fund Account shall be used solely for the payment of sinking
fund installments in order to redeem such Bonds as the same shall become due and

payable.

Reserve Account:

There shall be deposited in and credited to an applicable Reserve Account, at the time, in
the manner and with the effect as specified in an applicable Bond Order, an amount equal
to (the Reserve Requirement) a percentage of Maximum Annual Debt Service on the
Qutstanding Bonds, as provided in the Bond Order. Amounts to the credit of such
Reserve Account, if any, shall be used to pay principal of or interest and applicable
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premium on applicable outstanding bonds at any time when there are insufficient funds
available in the Bond and Interest Account to pay the same. If drawn upon, the Reserve
Account shall be funded and replenished at the times and in the manner as provided in an
applicable Bond Order. During any period with respect to which the City has drawn
upon the Reserve Account or other has a material default under the ordinance, the City
shall not provide to any person, including the City, any free or discounted system service.

Depreciation Account:

Money in the Waterworks Fund shall be allocated to the separate and special account to
maintain a renewal, replacement and depreciation reserve known as the “Depreciation”
Account.” At the time of delivery of the Bonds, and at the time of delivery of any Bonds
or Parity Bonds, there shall be credited to the Depreciation Account amounts derived
from funds of the City on hand and lawfully available therefor and from proceeds of the
Bonds sufficient to fund the Depreciation Account as determined by the Corporate
Authorities at the time the bonds are authorized. On or prior to the first day of each
month there shall be credited to the Depreciation Account as determined by the Corporate
Authorities at the time the bonds are authorized, up to an amount so determined by the
City Council or such higher amount as may be recommended by an independent
consulting engineer. Money in the Depreciation Account shall be used solely for the
purpose of first paying principal of, or sinking fund installments of, and interest on bonds
when there is insufficient money in the Bond and Interest Account, the Sinking Fund
Account, and thereafter to pay principal of, or sinking fund installments of, and interest
on the bonds; and to the extent not required for the foregoing, to pay the cost of
extraordinary maintenance expenses oOr repairs, renewals, and replacements not included
in the annual budget for current operation and maintenance expenses. The amount
required to be maintained in the Depreciation Account shall be determined by the City
Council at the time the bonds are authorized to be an adequate and reasonable

depreciation reserve.

Surplus Account: All moneys remaining in the System Fund, after crediting the required
amounts to the respective accounts hereinabove provided for, and after making up any
deficiency in the above Accounts described in subsections (a) to (d), inclusive, shall be
credited to the Surplus Account and shall first be used to make up any subsequent
deficiencies in any of the Accounts hereinabove named and then, at the discretion of the
Board of Trustees of the City, shall be used, if at all, for one or more of the following
purposes (and not for any general corporate purposes) without any priority among them:

1) For the purpose of constructing or acquiring repairs, replacements, improvements
to the System; or

2) For the purpose of calling and redeeming outstanding bonds which are callable at
the time; or

3) For the purpose of purchasing outstanding bonds at the time at a price of not to
exceed par and accrued interest to the date of purchase; or
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3) For the purpose of paying principal and interest on any subordinate bonds or
obligations issued for the purpose of acquiring, installing, or construction repairs,
replacements, or improvements to the System; or

4) For any other lawful System purpose.

Investments: Money to the credit of the System Fund prior to the monthly accounting
and to the credit of the Operation and Maintenance Account may be invested pursuant to
any authorized granted to any municipal corporations by the Illinois statue or court

decision.

Moneys to the credit of the Bond and Interest Account, Sinking Fund Account,
Depreciation Account and Surplus account (and any subaccounts created therein) may be
invested from time to time by the Treasurer in (i) interest-bearing bonds, notes, or other
direct full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America, (ii} obligations
unconditionally guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the United States of
America, or (iii) certificates of deposit or time deposits of any bank, as defined by the
Illinois Banking Act, provided such bank is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation or a successor corporation to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and
provided further that the principal of such deposits in excess of the insured amount is
secured by a pledge of obligations as described in the bond ordinance in full principal
amount of such excess. Such investments may be sold from time to time by the Treasurer
as funds may be needed for the purpose for which said respective accounts have been
created. To the extent moneys in said Accounts are held uninvested and on depositin
demand accounts, such amounts shall be added to the amount invested for purposes of the
FDIC insurance and collateralization requirements.

Investments in the Accounts shall mature or be subject to redemption at the option of the
holder thereof prior to the time when needed, and, in any event, within the times as

follows:
Operation and Maintenance 45 days

Bond and Interest 1 year
Sinking Fund 1 year
Depreciation 5 years
Surplus 10 years

All interest on any funds so invested shall be credited to the Waterworks Fund and is
deemed and allocated as expended with the next expenditure(s) of money from the
Waterworks Fund.

Moneys in any of said accounts shall be invested by the Treasurer, if necessary, in
investments restricted as to yield, which investments may be in U.S. Treasury
Obligations - State and Local Government Series, if available, and to such and the
Treasurer shall refer to any investment restrictions covenanted by the City or any officer
therefor as part of the transcript of proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds, and to
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appropriate opinions of counsel.

2) General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Sewerage System Alternate Revenue
Source) Series 2015B

Operation and Maintenance: There shall be deposited and credited to the Operation and
Maintenance Account an amount sufficient, when added to the amount then on deposit in

such Account, to establish a balance equal to an amount not less than the amount
necessary to pay Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the then current month.

Bond and Interest Account: There shall be deposited and credited to the Bond and
Interest Account and held, in cash and investments, a fractional amount (not less than
1/6) of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date on all
Outstanding Bonds and also a fractional amount (not less than 1/12) of the principal
becoming due (or subject to mandatory redemption) on the next succeeding principal
maturity date of all of the Outstanding Bonds until there shall have been accumulated and
held in cash and investments in such Bond and Interest Account on or before the month
preceding such maturity date of interest or principal, or both, an amount sufficient to pay
such principal or interest, or both. '

In computing the fractional amount to be set aside each month in such Bond and Interest
Account, the fraction shall be so computed that a sufficient amount will be set aside in
such Account and will be available for the prompt payment of such principal of and
interest on all Outstanding Bonds and shall be not less than one-sixth (1/6) of the interest
becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date and not less than one-twelfth
(1/12) of the principal becoming due (or subject to mandatory redemption) on the next
succeeding principal payment date on all OQutstanding Bonds until there is sufficient
money in such Account to pay such principal or interest, or both.

Credits into such Bond and Interest Account may be suspended in any Fiscal Year at such
time as there shall be a sufficient sum held in cash and investments in such Bond and
Interest Account to meet principal and interest requirements in such Bond and Interest
Account for the balance of such Fiscal Year, but such credits shall again be resumed at
the beginning of the next Fiscal year. All moneys in such Bond and Interest Account
shall be used only for the purpose of paying interest and principal and applicable
premium on Qutstanding Bonds. At the time of the delivery of any of the Bonds, such
amount, if any, determined necessary by the Corporate Authorities to be deposited into
such Bond and Interest Account from the proceeds of the Bonds.

Sinking Fund Account

Money in the Sewerage Fund shall at the same time the required payments are made to
the Bond and Interest Account be allocated to the special and separate account to pay
sinking fund installments, if any, with respect to any bonds subject to mandatory
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redemption, known as the “Sinking Fund Account”. The City shall maintain a separate
sub-account n the Sinking Fund Account for each particular group of any bonds which
mature on a single future date and for which sinking fund installments are required to be
paid in order to redeem such Bonds. The minimum amounts to be credited to each such
subaccount on or before the first day of each month shall be (1) if such sub-account
requires the payment of semi-annual installments in order to redeem such Bonds, 1/6 of
the amount payable on the next succeeding installment payment date; and (2) if such sub-
account requires the payment of annual installments in order to redeem such Bonds, 1/12
of the amount payable on the next succeeding installment payment date. Moneys
allocated to the Sinking Fund Account shall be used solely for the payment of sinking
fund installments in order to redeem such Bonds as the same shall become due and

payable.
Reserve Account:

There shall be deposited in and credited to an applicable Reserve Account, at the time, in
the manner and with the effect as specified in an applicable Bond Order, an amount equal
to (the Reserve Requirement) a percentage of Maximum Annual Debt Service on the
Qutstanding Bonds, as provided in the Bond Order. Amounts to the credit of such
Reserve Account, if any, shall be used to pay principal of or interest and applicable
premium on applicable outstanding bonds at any time when there are insufficient funds
available in the Bond and Interest Account to pay the same. If drawn upon, the Reserve
Account shall be funded and replenished at the times and in the manner as provided in an
applicable Bond Order. During any period with respect to which the City has drawn
upon the Reserve Account or other has a material default under the ordinance, the City
shall not provide to any person, including the City, any free or discounted system service.

Depreciation Account:

Money in the Sewerage Fund shall be allocated to the separate and special account to
maintain a renewal, replacement and depreciation reserve known as the “Depreciation”
Account.” At the time of delivery of the Bonds, and at the time of delivery of any Bonds
or Parity Bonds, there shall be credited to the Depreciation Account amounts derived
from funds of the City on hand and lawfully available therefor and from proceeds of the
Bonds sufficient to fund the Depreciation Account as determined by the Corporate
Authorities at the time the bonds are authorized. On or prior to the first day of each
month there shall be credited to the Depreciation Account as determined by the Corporate
Authorities at the time the bonds are authorized, up to an amount so determined by the
City Council or such higher amount as may be recommended by an independent
consulting engineer. Money in the Depreciation Account shall be used solely for the
purpose of first paying principal of, or sinking fund installments of, and interest on bonds
when there is insufficient money in the Bond and Interest Account, the Sinking Fund
"Account, and thereafter to pay principal of, or sinking fund installments of, and interest
on the bonds; and to the extent not required for the foregoing, to pay the cost of
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extraordinary maintenance expenses or repairs, renewals, and replacements not included
in the annual budget for current operation and maintenance expenses. The amount
required to be maintained in the Depreciation Account shall be determined by the City
Council at the time the bonds are authorized to be an adequate and reasonable

depreciation reserve.

Surplus Account: All moneys remaining in the System Fund, after crediting the required
amounts to the respective accounts hereinabove provided for, and after making up any
deficiency in the above Accounts described in subsections (a) to (d), inclusive, shall be
credited to the Surplus Account and shall first be used to make up any subsequent
deficiencies in any of the Accounts hereinabove named and then, at the discretion of the
Board of Trustees of the City, shall be used, if at all, for one or more of the following
purposes (and not for any general corporate purposes) without any priority among them:

1) For the purpose of constructing or acquiring repairs, replacements, improvements
to the System; or

2) For the purpose of calling and redeeming outstanding bonds which are callable at
the time; or

3) For the purpose of purchasing outstanding bonds at the time at a price of not to
exceed par and accrued interest to the date of purchase; or

3) For the purpose of paying principal and interest on any subordinate bonds or
obligations issued for the purpose of acquiring, installing, or construction repairs,
replacements, or improvements to the System; or

4) For any other lawful System purpose.

Investments: Money to the credit of the System Fund prior to the monthly accounting
and to the credit of the Operation and Maintenance Account may be invested pursuant to
any authorized granted to any municipal corporations by the Illinois statue or court

decision.

Moneys to the credit of the Bond and Interest Account, Sinking Fund Account,
Depreciation Account and Surplus account (and any subaccounts created therein) may be
invested from time to time by the Treasurer in (i) interest-bearing bonds, notes, or other
direct full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America, (ii) obligations
unconditionally guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the United States of
America, or (iii) certificates of deposit or time deposits of any bank, as defined by the
Illinois Banking Act, provided such bank is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation or a successor corporation to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and
provided further that the principal of such deposits in excess of the insured amount is
secured by a pledge of obligations as described in the bond ordinance in full principal
amount of such excess. Such investments may be sold from time to time by the Treasurer
as funds may be needed for the purpose for which said respective accounts have been
created. To the extent moneys in said Accounts are held uninvested and on deposit in
demand accounts, such amounts shall be added to the amount invested for purposes of the
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FDIC insurance and collateralization requirements.

Investments in the Accounts shall mature or be subject to redemption at the option of the
holder thereof prior to the time when needed, and, in any event, within the times as

follows:

Operation and Maintenance 45 days

Bond and Interest 1 year
Sinking Fund 1 year
Depreciation 5 years
Surplus 10 years

All interest on any funds so invested shall be credited to the Sewerage Fund and is
deemed and allocated as expended with the next expenditure(s) of money from the
Sewerage Fund.

Moneys in any of said accounts shall be invested by the Treasurer, if necessary, in
investments restricted as to yield, which investments may be in U.S. Treasury
Obligations - State and Local Government Series, if available, and to such and the
Treasurer shall refer to any investment restrictions covenanted by the City or any officer
therefor as part of the transcript of proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds, and to

appropriate opinions of counsel.
NOTE L. WALMART DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

On September 17, 2007 the City entered into a redevelopment agreement with WalMart
Real Estate Business Trust and Wal-Mart Stores, Inc, for the purpose of enticing
WalMart to construct a WalMart Super Center. This agreement was amended December
4, 2012 and no payments were made until after that date. WalMart agreed to construct a
signalized intersection, widen a highway and an entrance drive. The City agreed to
extend water and sewer lines to the property. WalMart agreed to finance the costs of
preliminary engineering services as well as the cost of extension of the water and sewer
lines. The City agreed to pay WalMart quarterly, from sales tax increment, up to
$840,000. The sales tax increment is defined as 75% of the amount of City Sales Taxes
received in excess of the amount that the City was receiving from the old WalMart store
that was closed upon the opening of the Super Center. The City’ obligation to under this
agreement ends upon paying the full reimbursement to WalMart or after the City has
made payments to for twelve (12) full calendar years. This is not a general obligation of
the City and is payable only from the sales tax increment. The Super Center opened for

business on March 18, 2009.

The actual amount advanced from WalMart was $1,080,959.06. During this fiscal year
$95,548 was paid to Walmart, A total of $611,025 has been paid since the beginning of

this agreement.
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NOTE M. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

To insure for property loss, worker‘s compensation and liability, the City has become a
member of the Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust (the Association).

The Association is a public entity risk pool that operates'a common risk management and
insurance program. Membership consists of Illinois governmental entities that have
elected to participate. There has not been any significant reduction in insurance coverage
from the previous year. There have been no settlements in excess of insurance coverage
during the past three years. Full details of the coverages can be found later in this report
and are hereinto incorporates.

NOTE N. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfer From Transfer To Amount FPurpose

General Cemetery 130,621 Cemetery operating costs exceed the revenue
collected. The General Fund makes up the deficit

Cemetery Perpetual Cemetery

Care Operations 9,622 All income from the sale of cemeterylots and interest
income is transferred to Cemetery Operations to fund
cemetery operating costs.

Cemetery Land Cemetery

Purchase Operations 23 All interest income is transferred to Cemetery
Operations to be use for operating expenses

Waterworks Funds Waterworks Funds 826,283 All transfers made are done to satisfy bond sinking fund
requirement and to allocate money to the operations account

Sewer System

Funds Sewer System Funds 251298 All transfers made are done to satisfy bond sinking fund
requirement and to allocate money to the operations account

Total Transfers $1,257,849

NOTE O. EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGET

The City did not exceed its budget in any fund.
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NOTE P. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2017 is as follows:

Balance Balance
May 1, 2016 Additions Deletions April 30, 2017
Business-type Activities:
Waterworks:
Depreciable:
Property, Plant and Equipment 12,628,649 $6,307 § - 12,634,956
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,617,564} (276,171) - (2,893,735}
Net Property, Plant & Equipment 10,011,085 (269,864) - 9,741,221
Sewerage System:
Depreciable:
Property, Plant and Equipment 5,955,055 307,532 - 6,262,587
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,135,741) (130,186) - (2,265,927)
Net Property, Plant & Equipmeht 3,819,314 177,346 - 3,996,660
Totals: All Business-Type Activities
Depreciable:
Property, Plant and Equipment 18,583,704 313,839 - 18,897,543
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (4,753,305) (406,357} - (5,159,662)
Net Property, Plant & Equipment $ 13,830,399 § (92,518) § - 13,737,881

Depreciation Expense was charged fo functions/programs of
the primary government as follows:

- Waterworks $ 276,171
Sewerage 130,184
Total Depreciation Expense $406,355
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NOTE R. REVENUE BONDS
‘Waterworks System
Original Amount of Bond $1,875,000
Interest Rate 0.00%
Payable at:
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
Springfield, Illinois
Bonds Mature Semiannually February 23
August 23
Year Ended April 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 5 96,154 § - 5 96,154
2019 96,154 . 96,154
2020 96,154 - 96,154
2021 96,154 - 96,154
2022 96,154 - 96,154
2023 96,154 - 96,154
2024 96,154 - 96,154
2025 96,154 - 96,154
2026 96,154 - 96,154
2027 96,154 - 96,154
2028 96,154 - 96,154
2029 96,154 - 96,154
2030 96,154 - 96,154
Total $1,250,002 30 $1,250,002

Continued on next page
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General Obligation Revenue Bonds Series 2016A
Waterworks System Alternative Revenue Sources

Original Ameunt of Bond

Interest Rate

Paying Agent and Bond

Bonds Mature Annually

Interest Payable Semiannually

Year Ended April 30,

4/30/2018
4/30/2019
4/30/2020
4/30/2021
4/30/2022
4/30/2023
4/30/2024
4/30/2025
4/30/2026
4/30/2027

Continued from previous page

$335,000
2.00% to 2.70%
Registrar Amalgamated Bank of Chicago

Chicago, lllinois

March 1

March 1

September 1

Principal Interest Total
$ - $ - $ -
30,000 7,680 37,680
30,000 7,080 37,080
35,000 6,480 41,480
35,000 5,745 40,745
35,000 5,010 40,010
30,000 4,275 34,275
30,000 3,645 33,645
35,000 2,835 37,835
35,000 1,890 36,890
35,000 945 35,945
Total $330,000 $45,585 $375,585
Continued on next page
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NOTE R. REVENUE BONDS Continued from previous page

Refunding Bonds Series 2016B
Sewerage System Alternative Revenue Sources

Original Amount of Bond $825,000
Interest Rate 1.75% to 2.70%
Paying Agent and Bond Registrar Amalgamated Bank of Chicago
Chicago, Mlinois
Bonds Mature Annually March 1
Interest Payable Semiannually March 1
September 1
Year Ended April 30, Principal Interest Total
4/30/2018 b 75,000 § 18,050 § 93,050
4/30/2019 75,000 16,550 91,550
4/30/2020 80,000 15,050 95,050
4/30/2021 80,000 13,650 93,650
4/30/2022 80,000 12,250 92,250
4/30/2023 80,000 10,570 90,570
4/30/2024 85,000 8,820 93,890
4/30/2025 85,000 6,807 91,807
4/30/2026 85,000 4,725 89,725
4/30/2027 90,000 2,430 92,430
Total $815,000 $108,972 $923,972

Continued on next page
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NOTE R. REVENUE BONDS
Waterworks System

Original Amount of Bond $4,313,577

Interest Rate 0.00%

Paying Agent and Bond Registrar llinois Environmental Protection Agency

Bonds Mature Semiannually February &

August 6
Year Ended April 30, Principal Interest Total
4/30/2018 $ 223,344 § - % 223,344
4/30/2019 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2020 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2021 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2022 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2023 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2024 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2025 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2026 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2027 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2028 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2029 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2030 223,344 - 223,344
4/30/2031 223,346 . 223,346
Total $3,126,818 50 $3,126,818
Continued on next page
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Continued from prévious page

SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

The annual requirements to amartize bonds payable at April 30, 2017 are as follows:

Year Ended April 30,

Totals

4/30/2018
4/30/2019
4/30/2020
4/30/2021
4/30/2022
4/30/2023
4/30/2024
4/30/2025
4/30/2026
4/30/2027
4/30/2028
4/30/2029
4/30/2030
4/30/2031

Waterworks Sewerage System
Principal Interest Tetal Principal Interest Total
$ 349,498 § 7.680 § 357,178 % 75,000 18,050 § 93,050
349,498 7,080 356,578 75,000 16,550 91,550
354,498 6,480 360,978 80,000 15,050 95,050
354,498 5,745 360,243 80,000 13,650 93,650
354,498 5,010 359,508 80,000 12,250 92,250
349,498 4,275 353,773 80,000 10,570 90,570
349,498 3,645 353,143 85,000 8,890 93,850
354,498 2,835 357,333 85,000 6,807 91,807
354,498 1,890 356,388 85,000 4,725 89,725
354,498 945 355,443 90,000 2,430 92,430
319,498 - 319,498 - - -
319,498 - 315,498 - - -
319,498 - 319,498 - -
223,343 - 223,343 - - -
5 4,706,817 § 45,585 § 4,752,402 % 815,000 § 108,972 § 923,972
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PENSION PLANS

April 30, 2017

CITY OF BEARDSTOWN

EMPLOYER NUMBER: 00116R

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Scheduie of Funding Progress - Regular Employees

Actuarial Accrued UAAL asa

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Fund Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets -Entry Age {(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) __(b-8) (a/b} (c) ((b-a)/c}
12/31/2016 3,032,999 3,586,252 553,253 84.57% 1,089,391 50.79%
12/31/2015 2,875,820 3,392,569 516,749 84.77% 1,016,647 50.83%
12/31/2014 2,824,048 3,380,187 556,139 83.55% 1,024,496 54.28%
12/31/2013 2,595,345 3,080,950 485,605 84.24% 1,020,260 47.60%
12/31/2012 2,026,868 2,679,400 652,532 75.65% 1,006,325 64.84%
12/31/2011 1,917,499 2,531,556 614,057 75.714% 1,017,897 60.33%
£2/31/2010 2,439,197 3,243,677 804,480 75.20% 1,176,163 68.40%
12/31/2009 2,304,800 2,961,704 656,904 77.82% 1,170,260 56.13%
12/31/2008 2,417,525 2,822,228 404,703 85.66% 995,271 40.66%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2016 is §2,973,043. On a market

basis, the funded ratio would be 82.90%. The actual value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive
members who have service credit with the City. They do not inciude amounts for retirees, The actuarial accrued
liability for retirees is 100% funded.

CITY OF BEARDSTOWN

EMFPLOYER NUMBER: 001168

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Funding Progress - Sheriff's Law Enforcement Perscnnel Employees

Actuarial Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability Untunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Fund Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets . -Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (8) {b) (b-8) (a/b) (5] ((b-a)/c)
12/31/2016 8 (56,598) 0 $ (56,598) 0.00% 0 0
12/31/2015 156,169 199,474 43,305 78.29% [y 0
12/31/2014 146,719 185,104 38,385 79.26% 0 0
12/31/2013 135,851 170,881 35,030 79.50% 23,442 149.43%
12/31/2012 120,558 178,983 58,425 67.36% 50,442 115.83%
12/31/2011 101,985 157,954 55,969 64.57% 48,931 114.38%
12/31/2010 88,355 141,599 53,244 62.40% 48,344 110.14%
12/31/2009 73,738 127,829 54,091 57.68% 48,573 111.36%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2016 is -$58,207. On 2 market

basis, the funded ratio would be 77.41%. The actual value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive
members who have service credit with the City, They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued
liability for retirees is 100% funded.

The Notes to Financtal Statements are an integral part of this report.
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIXS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PENSION PLANS

April 30, 2017

POLICE PENSION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Annual Required Annual Percentage
Fiscal Year Ending  Contribution Contributed Funded
4/30/2017 117,367 147,954 126.06%
4/30/2016 108,173 161,919 149.69%
4/30/2015 162,530 165,215 101.65%
4/30/2014 165,017 158,289 95.92%
4/30/2013 157,563 88,508 56.17%
4/30/2012 * 84,840
4/30/2011 84,454 76,195 90.22%
4/30/2010 74,554 63,256 84.85%
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Actuarial Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability Untunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Fund Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets ~ -Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a} )] (b-2) (a/b) (©) ({b-a)c)
5/1/2016 1,544,924 3,094,973 1,550,049 49.92% 239,047 648.43%
5/1/2015 1,498,747 2,927,691 - 1,428,944  5L19% 220,725 647.39%
5/1/2014 1,425,745 3,125,695 1,699,950 45.61% 309,458 549.33%
5172013 1,365,973 3,138,470 1,772,497 43.52% 258,883 684.67%
5/1/2012 1,356,746 3,235,427 1,878,681 41.93% 215,586 871.43%
5/1/2011 -dlata not available
4/30/2010 1,390,002 2,324,600 934,598 59.80% 209,048 447.07%
4/30/2009 1,420,158 2,121,705 701,547 66.93% 234,214 299.53%
4/30/2008 1,397,563 2,140,131 742,568 65.30% 169,513 438.06%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of May 1, 2016 iz $1,412,824. On a market

basis, the funded ratio would be 45.65%. The actual value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive
members who have service credit with the City.

* An actuarial valuatien was not performed es of May 1, 2011 to determined the Annual Required Contribution for the fiscal year
ending April 30, 2012. The City relied upon the Illinois Department of Insurance to do so. ‘The Department decided not to

provide the service during 2011. The Deparment resumed providing the actuarial valuations in 2012,

The Notes to Financial Statements are an intagral part of this report.
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS :
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PENSION PLANS

April 30, 2017

FIREFIGHTERS PENSION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Annual Required Annual Percentage
Fiscal Year Ending  Confribution Contributed Funded

4/30/2017 $ 77,284 3 88,092 113,98%
4/30/2016 88,389 84,453 95.55%
4/30/2015 84,770 67,455 79.57%
4/30/2014 67,374 72,855 108.14%
4/30/2013 72,151 45,765 63.43%
4/30/2012 * 43,879

4/30/2011 43,666 42,342 96.97%
‘4/30/2010 41,329 40,175 97.21%

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of {AAL) AAL Fund Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets -Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) 1)) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
5/1/2016 1,032,976 1,773,877 740,901 58.23% 138,646 534.38%
5/1/2015 962,373 1,662,439 700,066 57.89% 181,582 385.54%
5A1/2014 BB1,035 1,551,410 670,375 56.79% 160,221 418.41%
5/1/2013 792,626 1,391,825 599,199 56.95% 125,244 478.43%
5/1/2012 742,377 1,456,583 714,206 50.97% 121,873 536.02%
5/1/2011 datz not available *
43072010 664,075 1,013,728 349,653 65.51% 119,212 293.30%
4/30/2009 632,183 951,009 318,916 66.47% 115,179 276.89%
4/30/2008 607,088 910,902 303,814 66.65% 115,179 263.78%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of May 1, 2015 is $1,001,565. On a market
basis, the funded ratio would be 53.82%. The actual value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive

members who have service credit with the City. :

* An actuarial valuation was not performed as of May 1, 2011 to determined the Annual Required Contribution for the fiscal year
ending April 30, 2012, The.City relied upon the Illinois Department of Insurance to do so, The Department decided not to
provide the service during 2011, The Deparment resumed providing the actuarial valuations in 2012,

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this report.
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
2 CFR 200.510(b)(6) ‘
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2017

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of City of Beardstown, Illinois (the Government’s) under programs of the federal government for
the year ended April 30, 2017. The information on this Schedule is prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Government, it is not intended to and does not
-present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the Government

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported in accordance with the modified-cash basis of
accounting for CFDA Numbers 20.106 and 14.269.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS
No amounts were provided to subrecipients.

NOTE D - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS
Certain Federal programs require the Government to contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to

support the Federally-funded programs. The Government has met its matching requirements. The Schedule
does not include the expenditure of non-Federal matching funds.
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CITY OF BEARDSTOWN, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1. The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of
City of Beardstown, [llinois.

2. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of City of
Beardstown, Iilinois, were disclosed during the audit.

3. No material weaknesses were identified during the audit of the major federal
award program.

4. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award program for the City of
Beardstown, [llinois, expresses an unqualified opinion for the major federal program.

5 There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award program for
City of Beardstown, Illinois.

6. The programs tested as a major program include:
a. U S Department of Transportation
Airport Improvement Program
C.F.D.A No. 20.106

b. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Hurricane Sandy Community Development Block Grant

Disaster Recovery Grants
C.F.D.ANo 14.269

7. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.
8. City of Beardstown, Illinois did not qualify as a low-risk auditee
FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

The audit of the major federal award program did not disclose any findings or
questioned costs.
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~ MYERS
i ~ AND MYERS
F# CPAS, LTD. JOHN W. MYEHS, JR., CPA
M—-ﬂ"/ CRAIG A. MYERS, CPA

JOHN W. MYERS. SR. EA

900 East 15th Street, P.0Q. Box 139, Beardstown, IL 62618--217-323-5166 /Fax: 217-323-5505
2908 Greenbriar Drive,Suite B, Springfield, IL 62704--217-726-7091/ Fax: 217-726-7944

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Beardstown, Illinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Beardstown, Illinois, as of and for the year ended April 30, 2017,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Beardstown, Illinois’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 25, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City ot Beardstown,
Illinois’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Beardstown, Illinois’ internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Beardstown, Illinois’

internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,

yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have

not been identified.

‘Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Beardstown, Illinois’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under

Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is

not suitable for any other purpose.

Pt Fpencons

Myers & Myers CPA’s,
Beardstown, Illinois
August 25, 2017
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MYERS
AND MYERS
\ o CPAs, LTD. JOHN W. MYERS, JR., GPA
s CRAIG A. MYERS, CPA

JOHN W. MYERS, SH. EA
90C East 15th Street, P.O. Box 139, Beardstown, L 62618--217-323-6166 /Fax: 217-323-5605
2908 Greenbriar Drive,Suite B, Springfield, Il. 62704--217-726-7091/ Fax: 217-726-7944

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the City Council
City of Beardstown, Illinois

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audit the City of Beardstown, Illinois’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the City of Beardstown, Illinois’ major federal programs for the year ended April 30, 2017, City of
Beardstown, Illinois’ major programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Anditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compiiance for each of the City of Beardstown, Illinois’
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City of Beardstown, Illinois’ compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Beardstown,

Illinois’ compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of Beardstown, Illinois, complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended April 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City of Beardstown, Illinois is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Beardstown, Illinois’
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Beardstown,

Illinois’ internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of

the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

& Mhpono 8%, Lo

Myers & Myers CPAs, Ltd.
Beardstown, Ilinois
August 25, 2017
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